ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 1, 2008
1: 07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Kyl e Johansen, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representative Wes Kel |l er

Representati ve M ke Doogan

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 314

"An Act providing for and relating to the issuance of general
obligation bonds for the purpose of paying the cost of state
transportation projects; and providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED CSHB 314 (TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 322
"An Act establishing the Al aska transportation fund and relating
to the fund; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 322 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 314
SHORT TI TLE: G O. BONDS FOR TRANSPORTATI ON PRQIECTS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 16/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 08 (H) TRA, FIN

03/ 25/ 08 (H TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 25/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 27/ 08 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 27/ 08 (H Heard & Held

03/ 27/ 08 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2008



03/ 27/ 08
03/ 27/ 08
04/ 01/ 08

H) FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>
H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

NN N

BILL: HB 322
SHORT TI TLE: TRANSPORTATI ON FUND
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 17/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 08 (H TRA, FIN

03/ 25/ 08 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 25/ 08 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 25/ 08 (H M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 27/ 08 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 27/ 08 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 08 (H M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 01/ 08 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Offered testinony in support of HB 314.

JAMES KI NG Director

Di vi sion of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation

Central Ofice

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered testinony in support of HB 314.

STEVE RI BUFFO, Deputy Port Director

Port of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered testinony in support of HB 314.

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Legislative Liaison

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 322.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered testinony in support of HB 322.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2008



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KYLE JOHANSEN called the House Transportation Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:07:43 PM Represent ati ves
Johansen, Sal non, Johnson, Keller, and Neuman were present at
the call to order. Representatives Doogan and Fairclough

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 314-G O. BONDS FOR TRANSPORTATI ON PRQJECTS

CHAI R JOHANSEN announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 314, "An Act providing for and relating to the
i ssuance of general obligation bonds for the purpose of paying
the cost of state transportation projects; and providing for an
effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to adopt CSHB 314, Version 25-
GH2041\ E, Cook, 4/1/08, as the working docunent. There being no
obj ection, Version E was adopt ed.

1: 08: 44 PM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), said that the general obligation bond projects are
inmportant to the trucking industry and that ATA supports HB 314.

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked if the "Parks H ghway: Wight Restriction
Elimnation" project, referred to in HB 314, was part of M.
Thonmpson's February 14, 2008, Al aska Truckers Association
overview to the commttee.

1: 10: 03 PM

JAMES KING Director, Division of Parks & Qutdoor Recreation,
Central Ofice, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), expl ained
that the "South Denali Access Road" project consists of a road
and visitor center that will allow visitors to share the Denali
experience. He reported that the access road project will start
from the Parks H ghway, close to the South Denali view turnout
at Mle 134. He described that this wll be a 3.5 mle road to
an alpine Visitors Center which inproves access to the state

park lands and provides year round interpretative and
recreational opportunities for locals and visitors. He declared
that this wll present an area-wi de economc boost. He

explained that the $8.9 nmillion bond is the start-up noney for

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2008



the road. The rest of the project funding will be from federa
and private sources which have instructed that the state needs
to start the project before they wll commt any further
f undi ng.

1:14: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if this road is on state or federa
| and.

MR. KING replied that the road is on state land and is entirely
within Denali State Park.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the facility will be on state
| and, as well.

MR. KING responded that this wll be a Denali State Park
facility. He explained that the project is a partnership with
the Matanuska-Susitna Borough and the National Park Service
(NPS) and that the NPS has been very supportive with finances,
pl anners, and funding into the future.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if Denali National Park and Preserve
will be accessible fromthis visitor facility.

MR. KING replied that this project does not touch the Nationa
Par k. He reiterated that all of this project will be within
Denali State Park.

1:17:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked for an explanation of the federa
mat chi ng funds.

MR. KING replied that a funding package has been put together

and that the $8.9 million will start the process. He explained
that once this noney is received, the project will qualify for
NPS Centennial Initiative funds that are a dollar for dollar
mat ch. He pointed out that NPS has put a request in their
capital budget to help build the facility. He reported that al

three nenbers of Al aska's congressi onal del egati on have
indicated that they wll support the project if the state

initially funds the project. He said that Division of Parks &
Qut door Recreation has approached grantors and private funders
fromthe tourism industry, and several have responded that they
will participate.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2008



1:19: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked to clarify that this is not the
St anpede Road or the Petersville Road.

MR. KING agreed that this access road is neither of these.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked how this project cane to be included
in the bond package.

MR. KING conveyed that the governor requested proposals for new
roads, and that the division submtted this road project
pr oposal .

1:21: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the $8.9 mllion is just for the
road or is also for the facility.

MR KING said that the state requests that the noney be
dedi cated for a specific part of the project. He pointed out
that there is a need for environnental assessnent and planning
as part of the road project. He noted that any |left over nobney
will go toward construction of the visitor center.

STEVE RIBUFFO, Deputy Port Director, Port of Anchorage, said
that the Port of Anchorage is requesting $20 mllion each year
for the next five years as a state contribution to the port
expansi on project.

1: 24: 07 PM
CHAI R JOHANSEN cl osed public testinony.

CHAI R JOHANSEN outlined the proposed changes in the bill to be
the renoval of the $15 mllion for "Southeast Al aska: Pavenent
Rehabilitation,” and the addition of %$45 mllion for "G avina
Access. " He allowed that this will reflect a net increase of
$30 mllion for the general obligation bonds requested.

1:25:02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  FAIRCLOUGH said that she appreciates the
di scussion of the Gavina Access, but she questions how a bond

package wi Il pass when nore than 30 percent of the package goes
t o Sout heast Al aska.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2008



CHAIR JOHANSEN replied that Gavina Access is an inportant
project, and he expressed his belief that the decisions of the
state should not be nmade based on the nunber of people living
within an area.

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH agreed that Ilarge infrastructure
projects should go through a process to determne the priority
| evel . She expressed concern that a project which is 30 percent
of the bond package will jeopardize the other comunity projects
in the bond package.

1:27:37 PM

CHAIR JOHANSEN offered his belief that this bill wll be
bal anced with other state interests by the time it reaches the
House Fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed his concern with the |egislature
passing a bond package when there is so nuch noney avail able.
He requested nore discussion of the advisability for bonding.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN agreed wth Representative Doogan's
concern for a bond package. He nentioned that his constituents
feel that all the legislators are responsible for the budget.
He said that it is good that this bill wll go to a vote of the
publi c.

1:31: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that she wants her constituency
to know that she will put a "no recommendation” on this bill
She noted that there are billions of dollars of transportation

projects and that she supports the governor's resolve to nove
forward

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH est ablished that the "G avina Access”
project may raise federal concerns as Al aska has supported a "no
build" alternative. She posed that this my initiate
l[iabilities or ramfications fromthe federal governnent.

1:34: 26 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON all owed that he also has concerns about
the |egislation. He expressed his belief that this bill is a

budget increase, even though it is not contained in the capita
budget .

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2008



CHAI R JOHANSEN expressed hi s frustration Wi th t he
adm nistration's approach to the budget. He explained that he
tries to separate operating and capital budgets. He offered his
belief that the capital budget should be investnents in projects
that provide opportunities. He discussed the use of bonds,
stating that Al aska's bond rating is inproved, and that this
bill is a wi se use of npney.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to report CSHB 314, Version 25-
GH2041\E, Cook, 4/1/08, out of comittee wth individua
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 314(TRA) was noved fromcomrttee.
The commttee took an at-ease from1:38 PMto 1:41 PM

HB 322- TRANSPORTATI ON FUND

1:41:13 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 322, "An Act establishing the Al aska
transportation fund and relating to the fund; and providing for
an effective date.™

1: 41: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH conment ed t hat t he state
transportation infrastructure is critical for maintaining public

safety and economc opportunities. She agreed wth the
adm nistration that long term planning for the aging
transportation infrastructure is necessary. She conpared the
endownent concept to the permanent fund. She declared her
concern that the transportation infrastructure requires nore
than an annual $50 mllion appropriation. She presented an

annuity approach that provides increased annual funding for the
transportation projects.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated that a $1 billion endowrent

fund, paying 5 percent annually, wll take 21 years to finance
$1.48 billion worth of transportation construction projects,
conpared to an annuity fund that will spend $1.49 billion on

transportation projects over 10 years.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUCGH offered her belief that the state wll
suffer a revenue shortfall within the next eight years, and that
could cause the transportation endowrent fund to be usurped for
ot her fundi ng. She noted that during this sane tinme period an
annuity will have spent nore than $1 billion on transportation

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2008



projects, and the state wll have better prepared for the
economc viability of +the gas pipeline. She noted that
construction costs have increased 30 percent over the last 4
years, and that the assets of an endowrent fund will erode nuch
nore quickly than an annuity. She asked that the conmmttee
consi der the purchasing power of $1 billion when determ ning the
nmerits of an endownent savi ngs account conpared to an annuity.

1:50: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if an annuity would be zeroed out in
21 years.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH clarified that at the end of 21 years,
$1 billion will remain in the endowent fund; but at the end of
10 years, the annuity will have spent $1.49 billion, all of its
nmoney, on transportation projects. She called attention to the
rising cost of construction, explaining that the value of the
noney still left in the endowent fund will lose its purchasing
power for transportation projects.

1:52: 07 PM

JERRY BURNETT, Legislative Liaison, Director, Admnistrative
Services Division, Departnment of Revenue (DOR), stated that DOR
has a different estimate for an annuity payout. He reported
that an annuity has to guarantee paynents; therefore, a 10 year,
risk-free annuity invested in treasury bills wll generate a
return rate under 3 percent, for a total payout of $115 billion.
He identified the difficulty of expecting an 8 percent return
when the payout nust be within 10 years. He pointed out that a
poor return in the first year of an annuity will not generate
the noney necessary for a payout. He explained that an
endownent account allows paynents during good years and bad
years.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the endownent plan is predicated
on earnings of 8 percent.

MR. BURNETT explained that the endowrent plan is predicated on
average earnings of 8 percent over a 25-30 year tinme frane, not
average earnings in a 10 year period. He said that an annuity
needs to be concerned about earnings in each year.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked to clarify the risk difference

between an annuity and an endowrent, as the payout is
guaranteed, and the predicated interest is the sane.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2008



MR. BURNETT explained that the endowrent plan is predicated on
paying a percentage of the average market value for the prior
five years, so the average over tinme only needs to be 8 percent.
Wth an annuity, there needs to be earnings in each year, in
order for it to pay out correctly.

1:55: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked again that if there is a $1 billion
investment with assumed earnings for either an endowrent or an
annuity, then there needs to be the sane set of assunptions. He
posed that DOR is making a favorable set of assunptions for the
endownent and an unfavorable set of assunptions for the annuity.

MR. BURNETT reiterated that an endownent investnent allocation
is based on the return over a longer period of tinme, which
allows for a greater variation of annual earnings. He explained
that an annuity investnent is for a shorter tine period and that
does not allow for the sane earnings variation if there is to be
a guarant eed annual payout.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH conmented that she is happy that DOR
is working to neet the needs of DOT&PF. She asked for an
explanation of the real rate of return and a suggestion to
mai ntai n the purchasi ng power of the investnent.

MR. BURNETT expl ai ned that the endowrent approach is based on a
5 percent real rate of return. He agreed that this return wll
not maintain the purchasing power given the rate of inflation
for construction projects.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH furni shed an exanple that the dramatic
increase of oil industry construction costs is eroding the
purchasing power of the dollar, and pointed out that this
denonstrates the need for transportation projects to be built
i mredi ately. She offered her belief that the ten year annuity
payout program wusing the full $1 billion transportation fund,
will bring nore construction work and safer travel for Al askans.
She expressed her belief that an 8 percent return for the ten
year programis attainable.

MR. BURNETT expressed his belief that an 8 percent return for a

ten year investnent is not a reasonable expectation. He
expl ai ned that annuity  funds are general ly risk free
i nvest ments. He allowed that should a higher acceptable |eve

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- April 1, 2008



of risk be determned, the annuity could be invested for a
| arger return than the risk free investnent option.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her "great faith in the
investment strategies of our permanent fund board." She
suggested that the transportation fund be invested in sub
accounts to allow a wider range of risk so that the potenti al
for a larger return is tenpered with lower risk investnents.
She restated the inportance of pronptly investing nobre noney
into transportation projects.

2:02:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if the permanent fund has had an
annual rate of return greater than 8 percent over any 10 year
peri od.

MR. BURNETT offered his belief that there have been periods of
return both higher and lower than 8 percent. He referred to the
prior 8 years, and reported that the first 3 years |ost noney.
He noted that if annuity funds had been invested at that tine,
t he i nvestnent payoff would have been down.

2:03:45 PM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA),stated that an ATA legislative priority is to expand the
DOT&PF capital projects program He expressed support of the
endownent concept as it will create a sustainable and
predi ctabl e revenue source for DOT&PF. He reported that there
are many multi year projects that require a lot of tine and

pl anni ng. He allowed that federal funding will probably not
nmeet the needs. He encouraged state funding and he supported
Representative Fairclough's ten year plan that wll put noney

nmore quickly into the prograns. He offered his belief that the
hi ghway system supports the l|largest part of the popul ation and
deserves the largest portion of any transportation fund
appropri ations.

2:06: 15 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN offered his belief that this bill is not
the best use of the state funds. He said that he did not know

what the state needs mght be in five years, citing education
and public safety as two possibilities. He expressed concern

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2008



that a transportation fund is "locking it [the noney] up,"”
whereas if the noney is in the Constitutional Budget Reserve the
| egislature will be able to appropriate the noney.

2:10: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that the people of Al aska support
the governor's proposal to create separate funds for alternative
energy sources and transportation. She stated that the
transportation infrastructure plan needs to include long term
mai nt enance goals. She noted that mmintenance is |ess expensive
than repl acenent, but t hat there is no incentive for
mai nt enance.

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH expressed her bel i ef t hat t he
transportation divisions are at a di sadvantage when they submt
their recommendations as each |egislator advocates for a
specific region and re-prioritizes the transportation goals.
She stressed that a transportation fund is critical to the
infrastructure, and she agreed with DOR and the adm nistration
that Iong termplanning i s needed.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said that he is going to oppose the bill.

He agreed that $1 billion could be spent on transportation
pr oj ects. He stated his belief that his job is to decide on
appropri ations. He noted that this bill takes $1 billion,
dedicates it to a specific range of projects, and gives DOT&PF a
$50 mllion a year capital budget. He expressed that his

preference is to vote annually for sensible spending on
transportation projects. He expressed his belief that he is not
doing his job if he gives noney to a departnent to spend as they
det erm ne.

2:16: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER reported his understanding that the Al aska
State Constitution requires that [capital] spending is to go
toward infrastructure, and he expressed his belief that this is
not upheld. He declared that a long termtransportati on account
is an investnent which provides huge returns by building roads
that allow for devel opnment. He stated his support for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed his belief that relegating
funding responsibilities to the departnents is a bad idea. He
stated that he would rather appropriate noney for projects every
year, instead of setting up funds for each departnent.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SALMON renmarked that the legislature is here to
annual |y appropriate noney.

2:20: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her belief that roads
require long permtting processes, so there is a need for a
fiscal strategy that keeps the projects noving and allows for
i ncreased costs. She offered her belief that an annuity and an

endownent are exanples of transportation accounts. She stated
that the projects will still be brought to the legislature for
approval, and that this will ensure that the projects maintain

the state transportation infrastructure.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON reported his belief that nmoney wll be
tight in the next five to seven years. He said that he could
not reconcile that noney will have already been appropriated for
transportati on when the nost pressing future needs mght be for
education, senior care, or children. He stated that he could
not support the bill.

2:24: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to report HB 322 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Fairclough, Keller
Neurman, and Johansen voted in favor of HB 322. Represent ati ves
Johnson, Sal non, and Doogan voted against it. Therefore, HB 322
was reported out of the House Transportation Standing Committee
by a vote of 4:3.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
2:27:57 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2008



